HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 9, 2005
11:12 A M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 11:12:29 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representative Jim Hol m (tel econferenced)
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly

Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Jay Ramas; Representative Gabrielle Le Doux;

Dick Mylius, Deputy Director, Dvision of Mning Land and
Wat er, Department  of Nat ur al Resour ces; Pete Kelly,

Director, State Relations, University of Al aska; Ron
Schonenbach, Juneau; Jennifer Price, Warm Springs Bay,

Sitka; Joan Brodie, Kodiak; Mlinda Hofstand, Baranoff Warm
Springs Honmeowners Associ ation, Petersburg; Kristen Dunl ap,

Environnental Pl anner, Douglas Indian Association, Juneau,

Arthur Bloom Tenakee Springs; Mary Irvine, Juneau; Daniel

Trail, Thons Place, Wangell; Matt Davidson, Legislative
Director, Al aska Conservation Voters; Brett Carl son,

Col df oot Canp, Fairbanks

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Joe Beedle, Vice-President for Finance, Chief Financial
Oficer and Treasurer Trustee for the Land G ant Endownrent
Fund, University of Al aska; Jason Esler, MCarthy; Ted
Smith, WMyor of Petersburg, Petersburg; Julie Hursey,
Pet ersburg; Al Pagh, Four Star Lunber, Fairbanks; Margaret
Cl abby, Ketchikan; Larry Edwards, Sitka; Garvin Bucari a,
Wasilla; Deb Spencer, Pelican; Jon Billing, Craig; Jack
Reakoff, Wseman; Neil Darish, MCarthy; Andy, Snider,
McCarthy; Kelly Bay, MCarthy; Ed LaChappel, MCarthy; Dan
El | sberg, MCarthy; Paul Anderson, Vice Mayor, Petersburg

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/09/05 11:12 A M



City Council, Petersburg; Mchelle Niland, MCarthy; Pau
Johnson, Elfin Cove; RJ Kopchak, Elfin Cove; Lovey Brock,
Wangell; R ck Kenyon, MCarthy; Mchelle Casey, MCarthy;
Gayle Goss, Wangell; Valery MCandless, Myor, Cty of
Wangell; WIlm Stokes, WCA President for Tribe, Wangell

Mary Montgonery, University of Anchorage, Anchorage; Rachel
Col vard, Anchorage; Thor Stacey, W senman

SUMVARY

HB 130 An Act granting certain state land to the
University  of Alaska and establishing the
university research forest; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 130 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#HB130
HOUSE BILL NO. 130

An Act granting certain state land to the University of
Al aska and establishing the university research forest;
and providing for an effective date.

11:13: 49 AM

Representative Foster MWNED to ADOPT work draft #24-
GH1034\L, Bullock, 4/08/05 as the version of the bill
before the Commttee. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
adopt ed.

JCE BEEDLE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), VI CE PRESI DENT
FOR FI NANCE, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER AND TREASURER TRUSTEE
FOR THE LAND GRANT ENDOAMVENT FUND, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA,
offered to answer questions of the Committee.

PETE KELLY, DI RECTOR, STATE RELATI ONS, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA,
noted the University objects to the commttee substitute
The |l egislation does not neet the needs that the University
| ands bill i ntended. The University of Alaska is a |ands
grant institution, founded with the intent that it would
supplenent its operating expenses with the establishnent of
a lands grant trust. Currently, the University uses
earnings from the trust for their day-to-day facility
oper ati ons.

At statehood, it was anticipated that the University would
receive a nuch larger grant than it actually did. The
University received approximtely 140,000 acres. The
University of Alaska land grant ranked 48" out of the 50
st at es.

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/09/05 11:12 A M



M. Kelly noted that when SB 7 was passed and vetoed by the
Governor, it ended up in Suprene Court. The Legislature
prevailed in that suit and it becane |aw HB 130 woul d be
phase two of that and actually transfers the | and.

The University of Alaska has an active | ands departnent and
is the nost successful public entity of the State. He
pointed out that the University has sold 12,000 parcels
since 1986. The |ands departnent has to act in a fiduciary
position wth the |ands based trust. It is inportant that
the University is able to balance those obligations taking
into consideration that they are a public institution.

M. Kelly noted that the University engages in a high |eve
of public process in order to neet obligations. Deci si ons
have to pass through the Board of Regents to address issues
such as land decisions and policies. Public testinony is
taken to informthose deci sions.

He noted the concern that SB 130 had not had enough public
process and remnded the Commttee that the Al aska
Constitution stipulates there is no higher public process
than that which happens during deliberations of the
Legi sl ature. The other conplaints deal wth specific
parcel s. The University worked with the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources to determne the |ist.

Representative Wyhrauch pointed out concerns that the
University had transferred lands to organizations such as
the nature conservatory not placing the lands into a

devel opi ng node. M. Kelly advised that was a court
decision and not sonething that the University would have
normally chosen to do. Since there is fiduciary
responsibility to the trust, it has to be sold for the

hi ghest and best value. The intention of the University is
to get land into devel opnent.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked if the transfer resulted from
a court order. M. Kelly said yes. Representative Wyrauch
asked if they offered the highest value for the |and. M.
Kelly deferred that question to M. Beedle.

Representati ve Weyhrauch noted that the comnmttee substitute
attenpts to provide intent that the University be required
to transfer |ands for devel opnent purposes.

Representative Wyhrauch understood that the 260 thousand
acres proposed in the original bill was reduced to 249, 000
acres and asked if it would nake or break the bill wth that
reduction. M. Kelly said it would not be sufficient.

11: 23: 28 AM

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/09/05 11:12 A M



Represent ati ve Weyhrauch asked if anything above the 250, 000
threshol d woul d be adequate. M. Kelly responded it would
be doable as long as the value was simlar to the origina
request.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch nentioned on fish habitat concerns.
M. Kelly replied that he was was not referencing specific
spot s.

11: 24: 24 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked why the University objected to the
comm ttee substitute.

Representati ve Wyhrauch explained that the new committee

substitute acconplished two things. It renoved two
sections, which had a nunber of findings and |egislative
i ntent. That | anguage was placed into a draft letter of
i ntent. It does state that the University nmaintains its

role as a land grant institution.

11: 25: 33 AM

Representati ve Weyhrauch addressed the |anguage taken from
Sections 1 & 2 of the bill. Aso, the commttee substitute
clarifies that if the University gets the l|lands, that they
contribute to both the economc diversification of the State
and if they do not go into non-econom cal purposes, they
strike a bal ance between conservation and devel opnent. The
commttee substitute bill adds back the Lena Creek property.

Additionally, it affirnms that the University is a |ands
grant institution and outlines a cooperative extension
program The nost significant change occurs on Pages 6 & 7
and |isted the other property changes nade to that version.

11:28: 11 AM

Representative Weyhrauch said that the draft totals 195, 000
acres and retains parcels having Native allotnents. He
pointed out that the last provision adds a new Section P.
There were a nunber of concerns around Wangell and
Pet er sbur g. Concerns have to be balanced with a sense of
policy. The provision requires that the properties contain
a date-certain for formation of a borough so that the |ands
are not hanging out there into the future. Page 7
stipulates an offer to the nunicipalities, so that they can
devel op the land or organize a borough and they woul d have
to pay fair market val ue.

11:31: 13 AM

Representative Weyrauch continued, it would be required to
go to a non-profit organization that was established to

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/09/05 11:12 A M



manage, develop or sell the land for historic purposes,
whi ch woul d acconplish two things:

. It would allow the University to determ ne the best
use; and

. It would allow organizations that wunderstand the
property to wuse and develop it for  historic
pur poses.

Representative Weyhrauch stated that the types of
conprom ses that commttee substitute intended are to:

. Insure that the University could get the |ands
needed to neet its educational purposes;
. Recognize the inportant of the lands for |oca
organi zati ons and peopl es; and
. Ofer the lands to the nunicipalities to form
municipalities at the highest and best use of those
| ands.
11:33: 03 AM
M. Kelly agreed with the spirit, however, enphasized that
it is below the 250,000-acre threshold requested. He
reiterated that this legislation is the Governor’s bill and
that the University is the beneficiary of the |egislation
The University will continue to work with the Departnent of

Nat ur al Resour ces.

11: 34: 31 AM

DI CK MYLIUS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF M N NG LAND AND
WATER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, noted the handout in
Commttee nenber’'s file. (Copy on File). He provided a
brief background of the bill, pointing out that it is the
Governor’s sentinent that the University receives nore | and.

The 250,000 acres cones from SB 7 and is envisioned as a
match for a federal bill. That legislation initially did
not pass but has been reintroduced by Senator Lisa Mirkowski
and would grant the University of Al aska 250,000 acres of
federal land. The 250,000 acres is a magic nunber for two
reasons as it was the conmtnent made in SB 7 and it is the
match if the federal |egislation passes.

11: 36: 14 AM

M. Mlius noted that SB 7 established a process for
transferring lands to the University and was a ten-year,
expensive process. That legislation carried a $1.7 mllion
dollar fiscal note per year for ten years. HB 130 has an

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/09/05 11:12 A M



$800, 000 dollar fiscal note for three years. He believed
that HB 130 woul d provide a nore efficient process.

M. Mlius stated that the commttee substitute carves 62

parcels, anmounting to approximately 250,000 acres. The
parcels fall into three categories of |ands.

. Educati onal properties, which wll serve the
University's educational i nt ent and anount to
approxi mately 80, 000 acres of the package;

. One track of 90,000 acres near the Nenana River,
whi ch has good possibility of discovery of natural
gas; and

. | nvest nent properties in the anount of 80,000 acres.

Those are the properties the University would sell
About % of those properties are in SE Al aska.

11: 39: 53 AM

M. Mlius referenced the maps on display in the Commttee
room indicating how they relate to the |ands discussed. He
ment i oned access restrictions and University nmanagenent. He
noted, the properties in SE Al aska have been the nost
controversi al

M. Mlius explained how the parcels had been identified.
Most were parcels that the Departnment of Natural Resources

woul d eventually sell and/or devel op. The Departnent’s
restrictions go away when the land is transferred. The
Department did not let the University select |ands nanaged
for forestry. Lands were wthdrawmm intended by the

Department for land sales in the next five years and ones
those nmunicipalities had natural selection upon. There has
been concern brought up by municipalities that plan future
expansi on of their boroughs.

Representative Kelly referenced the Col df oot area concerns
and asked if there had been discussion with that area. M.
Mylius said his office had not been contacted, but he was
awar e of concerns. He noted that the University of Al aska
offers a public testinony process and it would be better for
themto address those situations.

11:47: 02 AM

Representative Kelly comended Representative Wyrauch for
the work done on the conmttee substitute, noting that he
still did have concerns, which he hoped the University could
addr ess.

Representative Hawker referenced Page 3, Section 3, the

three categories of land and asked for a breakout of the
property by those categories. M. Mlius replied that

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/09/05 11:12 A M



Section © properties do not show up because when the federal
governnment transfers land to the State, if there are
existing clainms on that land, they will not transfer it.
That |and would be excluded in the transfer to the State.
If the claim ever went away, then the lands could be
transferred. Those lands are kept in the State’'s “top
filing”, waiting for selection. The reason that the
provision is included is that the |aw states that the | ands
should be transferred by 2005 with the understanding that
there is no outstanding obligation.

11:51: 02 AM

In response to Representative Hawker, M. Mlius did not
think that there were many of that |and type. The transfers
to the University are subject to any valid existing rights.
The primary “in-holdings” would be federal reservations or
State land already transferred to other parties.

11: 52: 02 AM

Representati ve Weyhrauch thanked M. M/lius for the work he
had done.

11:52: 55 AM

AL PAGH, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), FOUR STAR LUMBER,
FAl RBANKS, commented that he was involved in the tinber
i ndustry, one of the few industries that wuses renewal
resour ces. HB 130 would reduce the anount of tinber
avail able throughout the State. It is difficult to
manuf acture anything in Al aska that cannot be consunmed in
the State because of transportation costs and that | unber
was the one thing that can be used here. M. Pagh voiced
strong opposition to the proposed bill

11: 56: 36 AM

LARRY EDWARDS, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), SITKA, noted
that he did not like the legislation and recomended it be
“killed”. He indicated that Sitka opposes all parcels
included in the bill except the one adjacent to the
University of Al aska-Sitka canmpus. He reiterated the strong
opposition to the bill throughout the State.

M. Edwards nentioned the matching |legislation currently in
the U S. Congress and thought that Ilegislation too would
create many problens statewide. Cear cutting should not be
funding the price for higher education and that the
Uni versity system should be funded up front.

11:58: 55 AM

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/09/05 11:12 A M



TED SM TH, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MAYOR OF
PETERSBURG, PETERSBURG highlighted a drafting error in the
commttee substitute, Page 4, Section 3, wth the date
listed as “2055”.

He noted that the bill undermnes existing statew de
managenent direction. Through a very public process, the
State has worked in consort with citizens, public

organi zations and federal agencies to devel opnent a
managenent plan for the State. That effort was done with
good will, which would be elimnated through passage of SB
130. He concluded that the |l egislation was insulting.

12: 02: 18 PM

Representative Weyhrauch noted that the 225 days had been
listed in the original bill. He inquired the l|ast borough
formation vote in Petersburg. Mayor Smth replied that the
vote has not yet been established; however there have been
di scussions with Wangell. Representati ve Weyhrauch asked
the last tinme that Wangell had a vote on borough formation.
Mayor Smth wunderstood that the process for filing the
petition had occurred and declined by the Departnent of
Commerce, Community & Econom c Devel opnent.

12: 03: 39 PM

JULI E HURSEY, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), PETERSBURG
echoed concerns voiced by Myor Smth. She noted her
opposition to HB 130 nentioning the about work done on the
South East (SE) Lands Managenent plan, produced with the
Department of Natural Resources. Once the University takes
the lands listed in HB 130, the |and designations would no

| onger be binding. The University would take |ands
designated in the plan and sell it off to private owners who
would develop it as they want and private ownership
precl udes public use. Ms. Hursey stressed that years of

research and expense went into devel oping those plans. She
urged that the RU designated | ands be renoved fromthe bill
She asserted that there are other ways to raise noney for
the University, recommending raising the taxes on oil or
i npl enenting an inconme tax. The lands grant system was
devel oped in the 1880's. She urged that the bill not be
passed out of Commttee or that it be altered to renove the
| ands of concern.

12: 06: 28 PM

M CHELLE NI LAND, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY
testified against the legislation. She did not believe that
the | ands proposed for the University could benefit them and
that the loss of those |lands would conpletely devastate
McCarthy. The anount of revenue expected to be generated by
the bill is relatively small. The proposed | ands are being

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/09/05 11:12 A M



used for subsistence lifestyles and act as a buffer zone

between MCarthy and the |l|ocal park service. It is
inperative that the | ands stay avail able. She believed that
the bill would increase the |ocal population and decrease

resources and through the transfer, the MCarthy lifestyle
woul d be elimnated. She enphasized that McCarthy shoul d be
renoved from the land transfer. Ms. Niland recommended a
possi bl e solution would be anending the federal bill

12:11: 07 PM

JASON ESLER, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), CULTURNAL
ANTHROPOLOLA ST, MCCARTHY, voi ced concern W th t he
| egislation and the effect that the |law would have on the
resources, the comunity and the existing “terrible”
relationship that already exists with the park service and
the people of MCarthy. The community does not have a
formal governnment. Wthin the community, there are limted
pl aces that the residents can go to collect wood and/ or hunt
that not on federal |[ands. The zones indicated are an
i nportant buffer zone. The proposed 12,000 acres is a huge
anount of land for the size of McCarthy. He urged that the
McCarthy land be renobved from the land transfer to the
Uni versity.

12: 13: 35 PM

GARVIN BUCARI A, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), WASILLA,
spoke against HB 130. He urged that other prograns be added

to provide the support requested by the University. He
enphasi zed that public |lands should not be transferred out
of public ownership. The full public oversight would be

reduced to the University's Board of Regents. They do not
have the sanme attitude in managing the | ands. He encouraged
that the Legislature fund University prograns directly.
Research and education projects could be conducted on State
and federal |ands w thout an ownershi p change.

12: 18: 43 PM

DEB SPENCER, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), PELI CAN
represented other residents in Pelican and testified agai nst
portions of the legislation. She pointed out that previous
University actions indicate that they are not consistent
when working wth |ocal comunities. Pelican is
econom cally depressed and suffering and that the proposed
| egi sl ati on would only nmake it worse.

12: 23: 09 PM

JON BILLING (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE), CRAI G
testified in opposition to portions of the proposed
| egi sl ati on. He maintained that there are areas within the
bill, which should be renbved and nmintained as State

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/09/05 11:12 A M



owner shi p. The Thorne Bay area w Il affect opportunities
for |l ogging and enpl oynent for Alaskans. He referred to the
Al aska  Ment al Health  Trust Aut hority ( AVHTA) | and
settlenents as a nodel

12: 26: 08 PM

JACK REAKOFF, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), expressed
concern that there are no provisions for pipeline crossings
and no considerations of year around service at Col df oot.

THOR STACEY, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), W SEMAN, echoed
concerns voiced by M. Reakoff. He added comments regardi ng
year around service in Coldfoot and asked if it that would
be wi t hdrawn.

Representative Kelly questioned if by not renoving that
parcel, could a plan be arranged to accommopdate those
concerns. M. Stacey expressed concern that the University
of Al aska’s managenent policy tends to be uncertain. They
want the nost noney possible for the lands and that could
precl ude any public input.

12: 32: 10 PM

NEIL DARISH, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY,
expressed concern over the Departnent of Natural Resources
control over partials in MCarthy. He stressed the
i nportance of harvesting firewod and use of the gravel pit.
He mentioned the difficulty of accessing federal |ands and
voi ced concern that the University would sell land to the
Nati onal Park Service. He reiterated that the National Park
Service is not willing to work with the community and that
t he Departnent was.

12: 34: 32 PM

KELLY BAY, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY, echoed
the remarks by M. Darish and stressed the inportance and
need of harvesting wood. He stressed that nmuch of the |and
in question is not appropriate for developnent and rests
over swanpy grounds.

ED LACHAPPEL, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY,
spoke in opposition to the legislation. He pointed out how
little opportunity there had been for public input. He
urged that the MCarthy parcel be renoved from the |and
transfer proposal.

DAN ELLSBERG (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY,
testified in opposition to the inclusion of the MCarthy
parcel in the |egislation. He stressed his dependence on
local lands and the difficulty of obtaining access to

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/09/05 11:12 A M



federal | ands. He thought that the transfer would create
conflicts within the conmmunity.

12: 44: 29 PM

ANDY SNI DER, (TESTI FI ED VI A TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY, urged
that the McCarthy land area be deleted from the bill. He
stated that developing another 12,500 acres of land in
McCarthy would be “frightening” as there is already a
stressful demand on |ocal resources. He warned about
significant 1issues that would result and recomended
creating a University endowrent in other ways.

12: 48: 24 PM

PAUL ANDERSON, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), VICE MAYOR,
PETERSBURG CI TY COUNCI L, PETERSBURG testified against HB
130. He clained that the nunicipalities were being “held
host age” by the Legislature. He added his support creating
an endowrent from the Permanent Fund for the University of
Al aska.

12:51: 23 PM

VELI NDA  HOFSTAND, BARANOFF  WARM  SPRINGS  HOVEOANERS
ASSCCI ATI ON, PETERSBURG, voi ced appreci ation to
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch for excludi ng Baranoff Warm Spri ngs
from the |egislation. The watershed in that area is the

only water source for the community and they would no | onger
have a water supply source if it remained in the bill.

12:53: 47 PM

PAUL JOHNSON, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ELFIN COVE,
testified against the |legislation, noting how “dramatically”

that land sale would inpact Elfin Cove. It would affect
Elfin Cove's economc future. M. Johnson poi nted out that
the proposed bill was the | argest piece of |egislation since

st at ehood or Al aska National |nterest Lands Conservati on Act
( ANLI CA) .

Representative Kelly asked about the situation existing in
Elfin Cove and hoped that Representative Wyhrauch had
addressed it.

12: 56: 56 PM

RJ KOPCHAK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ELFIN COVE,
i ndi cated that he would fax testinony for M. Beedle and M.
Kenyon from Elfin Cove with coments against the proposed
| egi sl ation and | and transfer.

12: 58: 06 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/09/05 11:12 A M



LOVEY BROCK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ALASKA NATI VE
SI STERHOOD (ANS), WRANGELL, spoke against any use of
tradi tional | ands. These lands are still being used for a
traditional way of life for Alaska Natives in that area

She stated that there has to be another way to help the
University than taking traditional |ands.

12: 59: 01 PM

RI CK KENYON, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY, spoke
agai nst inclusion of the parcel referenced in SB 130 for the
McCarthy area as it is an inportant resource to that
comunity. He strongly urged that the Commttee reconsider
the | egislation.

1: 00: 49 PM

M CHELLE CASEY, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MCCARTHY,
spoke against the land listed around the conmunity of
McCart hy. If the land is transferred and the Park Service
has access, they will inpose fees for usage. The conmunity
of McCarthy is an asset to the State of Al aska. She pointed
out that they had gather 60 signatures in one and hal f days,
which is a huge nunber for the size of McCarthy. She urged
reconsi deration of the |egislation.

RECESS: 1: 05: 36 PM
RECONVENE: 1:54: 36 PM
1:54: 55 PM

MARGARET CLABBY, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), KETCH KAN
addressed four concerns of funding for the University with
parcel s from Sout heast Al aska, testifying in opposition to
the bill.

. The parcels contradict the State’'s | and use pl an;
. There are financial issues in using the l|lands for
the University;
. Leaving the parcels alone would help to stabilize
the econony in SE Al aska; and
. There are Public access concerns.
2:00:18 PM

Ms. O abby concluded that placing the lands into private
ownership, then no one from the coast would be able to cut
through to national forest | ands. The federal governnent
does not put access easenents unless they are absolutely
required.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/09/05 11:12 A M



2: 02: 06 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked for a formal response from the
University regarding if the legislation would be fiscally
irresponsible in certain tinberlands.

MARY MONTGOVERY, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), UNI VERSITY
OF ANCHORAGE, ANCHORAGE, clarified that the University had
actually received an appraisal froma |ocal appraiser and it
was determ ned that the property was sold above fair narket

val ue. She rem nded nenbers that the University is tax-
exenpt .
2:04:28 PM

GAYLE GRCSS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), WRANGELL
echoed concerns regarding the land transfer, particularly
the parcel at Aive Cove on Ellen Island. She enphasi zed
the inportance of the lands in question to Wangell and that
the intent of the bill provides for |ogging. Logging would
renmove stream habitats and the fish habitat would be
conprom sed. M. G oss pointed out that the State’s fishery
managenent system is based on sustainable yield; it 1is
inportant to protect the fish-spawning habitat.

2: 06:49 PM

VALERY MCCANDLESS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MAYOR
CITY OF WRANGELL, reiterated the inportance of the Qdive
Cove parcel and gave a brief history of the archeol ogical
i nportance of that area. She maintained that the proposa
contradicts the State’s Land Use Pl an.

2:10: 07 PM

W LMA STOKES, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), WCA PRESI DENT
WRANGELL, testified in opposition to the |egislation,
expressing concern wth a nunber of selections. She
requested that Thons Place & Aive Cove be renoved.

Ms. McCandl ess addressed the comm ttee substitute, pointing
out that two of the parcels of concern had been pulled and
i ndi cated her appreciation for that.

2:12:45 PM

RACHEL COLVARD, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), STUDENT
ANCHORAGE, testified in opposition to the |legislation. She
mai ntai ned that the legislation is in opposition to State
policy. She recommended creating a research board. She
referred to Section AS 14.40.400(a) on Page 9, Line 4,
noting the inpact on the State.

2:16: 07 PM

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/09/05 11:12 A M



RON SCHONENBACH, JUNEAU, noted that he had worked for 25
years for the Departnent of Natural Resources, Division of
M ni ng, Land, and Water. He stated that the bill was ill
concei ved and should have begun with a public process. He
referenced the | and nanagenent plans and how t he gui delines
went through an extensive 2-year process. VWhat is
di sturbing about the land list is inclusion of a l|ot of
settlenment and wildlife habitats. The land list takes all
of the settlenent |ands out of the Departnent’s |and base.
The Departnent of Natural Resources woul d not have any | ands
left to sell in SE Alaska. He stressed that is a
shortsi ghted approach for | and managers.

During the planning process, the Departnment of Natural
Resources and the public agreed on which lands would be
wildlife habitat and which would be for public recreation

Once the lands are conveyed to the University, all that
woul d vani sh. The Departnment of Natural Resources would
| ose credibility and the University of Alaska will have to
wi thstand a fight.

M . Schonenbach referenced the 655 acres on Mddle Island in
Si t ka. He noted that there are only a few pieces of very
exposed and marginal land left on Mddle |Island. He
questioned inclusion of that |and.

M . Schonenbach concluded that there are many “faults” wth
the legislation, but should it proceed, it would fail the
intent of SB 7 (passed in 2000). He pointed out that 70% of
the investnent properties are in SE Al aska. He recommended
that there is time remaining to recomend that the
Departnent of Natural Resources take another |ook at their
i nventory.

2:21: 23 PM

JENNI FER PRICE, WARM SPRINGS BAY, SITKA, testified in
opposition to the |egislation. She expressed concern wth
RU desi gnated parcels. She spoke in support of the renova
of parcels that will dramatically affect |ifestyles.

2:24: 35 PM

BRETT CARLSON, COLDFOOT CAMP, testified in opposition to the
i nclusion of the Coldfoot |and sel ection. He gave a brief
hi story of the Col df oot parcel. He believed that the intent
was to support the oil industry. Their |ease requires them
to be open year round to provide services to the public. He
provi ded nmenbers with witten remarks regardi ng the Col df oot
Land Transfer. (Copy on File).

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/09/05 11:12 A M



M. Carlson proposed that the State go through a public
pl anni ng process, which he maintained had not occurred. He
asked for a fair and rational public process.

2:30: 24 PM

JOAN BRODI E, KODI AK, testified 1in opposition to the
| egi sl ati on. She spoke in support of maintaining public
access to the narrow cape area. She pointed out that there
is only 70 mles of roads on the Kodiak |Island & encouraged
that the area remain off the map for the University. She
urged reconsi deration of the bill

2:32: 20 PM

KRI STEN  DUNLAP, ENVI RONVENTAL  PLANNER, DOUGLAS | NDI AN
ASSCCI ATI ON, JUNEAU, spoke on behalf of the Taku Quan
peopl e. She stated that they are strongly opposed to the
public | and conveyance contained in HB 130. She referred to
the Sum Dum Plot, a five-acre plot in Sanford Cove. She
poi nted out the historical and cultural inportance to these
peopl e. Ms. Dunlap voiced concern over the University of
Al aska’s poor history of land nmanagenent. There are
concerns over public access and devel opnent. She believed
that the land acquisition would result in a reduction of
State support for the University.

2:35:11 PM

Representative Kelly asked for exanples of the University's
failures. Ms. Dunlap provided exanples of poor |and
managenent . She pointed out unsafe |ogging practices in
University |lands near Ketchikan, declared a contam nated
site by the Departnent of Environnental Conservation. In

the past, the University has not followed State and federa
| and standards in devel oping their |ands.

2:37:27 PM

ARTHUR BLOOM CITY OF TENAKEE SPRINGS, TENAKEE, spoke in
opposition to the legislation. He comented that there are
two major problenms with the |ands selected around Tenakee.
There was a court order stipulation resulting between the
State and the Gty of Tenakee in 1981, which would be
br eeched. He spoke to the zoning regulations currently in
pl ace in Tenakee and that the zoning would not permt the
types of uses proposed by the University.

2:40: 22 PM

MARY | RVI NE, JUNEAU testified 1in opposition to the
| egi slation and provided nmenbers wth witten remarks and
maps. (Copy on File.) She spoke to the inportance of the
archeological sites on State | ands. She nmaintai ned that

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/09/05 11:12 A M



these sites should be red flagged for their protection.
Forest service land is adjacent to the majority of these
parcels. She observed that the parcel in reference is only
5 acres. Tourismis a thriving business in the Tracy Arm
ar ea. She noted that major archeological finds have been
made in that area.

Ms. Irvine referenced Page 5, Line 12, of the commttee
substitute. She maintained that |anguage would only
post poned t he probl ens.

Ms. Irvine addressed the fiscal notes, which she felt were
unrealistic given the testinony over the |last several

nont hs. This is the biggest lands bill since the Al aska
Natives Settlenment Act. She wurged that the notes be
revisited.

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS poi nted out that these | ands could
attract research dollars as archeol ogical sites. M. Irvine
responded that the University currently has access to these
| ands and that scholars are working with the parcels. She
maintained that if the parcel is part of the lands bill
there is a greater risk that it would be alienated.

2:54: 13 PM

DANI EL TRAIL, THOVS PLACE, WRANGELL, spoke in opposition to
the legislation. He read a Resolution against the transfer
of the Thons Pl ace parcel. (Copy on File.) He mai nt ai ned
that the University could be funded by the State if the
State desired. The only reason for giving the land is to
renmove the public process. He referred to the commttee
substitute and asked for the renoval of Thons Pl ace parcel

The parcel being proposed for transfer is three tinmes the

size of the comunity. |t enconpasses areas used by |ocals
and areas that have historic inportance. M. Trail referred
to Page 7, Line 15. He concluded that the Thons Place

Associ ation would be included in the provision.

3:02: 30 PM

MATT DAVI DSON, LEG SLATIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CONSERVATI ON
VOTERS (ACV), JUNEAU, testified in opposition to the
| egislation. He clarified that there is no trigger that the
State nust neet in ternms of the land transfer. The federa

provi sion would match lands transferred to the University on
an acre-by-acre basis. He commented that non-public
pur poses are not appropriate and expressed concern that the
| ands woul d be sold for private ownership. He noted that
many of the lands were selected for their public purpose.

He referred to the fiscal aspect of the transfer. He
mai ntained that the purpose is not to fully fund the
Uni versity. He spoke strongly against the |iquidation of

State | ands as contained in HB 130.

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/09/05 11:12 A M



HB 130 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.
#

3:08: 00 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:08 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/09/05 11:12 A M



